STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

CHARLESTON
Gus R. Dougtiass o

Commissicner

NOTICE OF AGENCY APPROVAL

LEGISLATIVE RULE: Wsst Virginia Pesiicide Use § Application Act
SERIES XIla
The attached rule constitutes the official rule approved by the West
Virginia Department of Agriculture on June 13, 1986, and filed pursuant to law

with the West Virginia Secgretary of Stete and the Legislative Rule Making Review

[N

Gus R. Dougless
Agriculture Commissioner

Commitiee.




SYNCPSIS OF REGULATION CHANGE TO SECTION 13

FINANCIAL SECURITY REQUIRED OF LICENSED PESTICIDE APPLICATION BUSINESSES

The financial security or liability imsurance required of
businesses applying pesticides for hire has become increasingly difficult
or impossible to obtain for many companies. The amendments to Section 13
of the above listed regulations will enable companies to stay in business
and, at the same time, provide adequate protection for the citizens of
the State and meet the statutory requirements mandated by the Legislzature
in Chapter 19, Article 163, Secticn 153.

The companies affected by the tightening imsurance reguirements
provide pest control services to homes, hospitals, restaurants, warehouses
and publiec buildings; maintzin right-of-ways to provide for uninterrupted
electricity and fuel services; and protect the State's crops, to assure
an adequate supply of food, fiber and energy to the pecple of West Virginia.
These amendments are necessary for the immediate Dreservauloﬂ of the
health, safety and welfazre of the public.

The minimum 1imits of liability under the old regulations were
Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) for bodily injury or death
each occurrence and One Hundred Thousand Deollars ($100,000.00) for property
damage resulting from the use or misuse of pesticides for all categories
of ground applicators. Aerizl applicators minimum requirements wers
Three Eundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00) bodily injury or dearh each
occuerrence and Two Hundred Thousand Dellars ($200,000.00) for property
damage resulting from -the use or misuse of pesticides. .

The new regulations specify thé/type of insurance to be required
as being of Comprehensive General Liability with a Broad Form General
Liability supplement in a minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($300,000.00) combined 51ngle limit for bodily injury or death
and preoperty damage for ground applicators, and Three Hundred Thouszand
Dollars (5300,000.00) for bodily injury or death and One Hundred Thousand
Dellars ($100,000.00) for property damage for serial applicators. In
the event the insurance specifically excludes lisbility arising from the
turposeful use of pesticides then the applicator must secure an additional
rider or surety bond in 2 minimum amount of Twenty Five Thousand Dollars
(825,000.00) to provide such financial security.
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These Legislative regulations establish general operating rules and
procedures for the enforcement of the West Virginia Pesticide Use & Application

Act (Article.16B) Inecluding, but not limited to, the certification of users of

restricted use pesticides, the lcensing of firms applving pesticides for hire,
restricted use pesticides and the dealers in restricted use pesticides, recor:d
keeping and standards for certification and Lcensing.

The amendments to Section 13 of the above listed regulations will enable
companies to stay in business and, at the same time, provids adequate protection
for citizens of the State and meet the statutory requirements mandated by the

Legislature In Chapter 19, Article 16B, Section 13.
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Rule Title: West Virginie Pestigide Use and Application sar 0FFLL 07 270y o
SECRETALY OF §7ATE

Type of Rule: X Legislative interpretive Procedural

Agency W.Va, Dept. of Acriculture Address___Guthrie Agricultural Csnier,

Charleston, WV 25305

ANNUAL FISCAL YEAR
1. Effect of Proposed Rule | Increase Decrease! Current Next Thnereafter

Estimated Total Cost $ NCNE | $NCNE |%$ NONE|S$ 00 | $ NONE

Personzl Services
Current Expense il
Repairs and Alterations
Equipment

Other

2. Explanation of above estimates.

The proposed change will not effsct current procedures.

3. Chbiectives of these rules:

The emendment of Section 13 will reflect the current trends of insurance
available to Licensed Pesticide Application Businesses. The currsnt
requirements are no longer zvailable to many segments of the industry.



q, Explanation of Overall Economic ippact of Proposed Rule.

AL Economic Impact cn State Government,
NONE .
8. Econmomic lmpact on Political Subdivisions; Specific Industries;

Specific groups of citizens.

These rules will enable many pesticide application businesses 1o
remain in business. Without the changes, some compa_nies will be
freed to close and their services will no longer be available.

C. Economic Impact on Citizens/Public at Large.

NONE - T T ' : B

Date  April 11, 1588 e - -

T

Signature of Agency Head or Authorized Representative
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Avthorizing statute(s) citation W. Va, Code 158-18B-4

What othe
cive cf ¢

Markst Bulletin and statewide news release

Date of hezrxing (s): - May 22, 1988
Attzch list ¢ perscns whe appeared at hearing, commentis
receivaed, amendments, rsascuns for amendments.

Attached X - 7 - No cormments raceived

Data yvou filed in St “% Recister the agency aporoved
pronosad Legislative Rule following pubklic hearing:
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.dune 13, 1988

Name and phone number of agency gerseon Lo contack
for additional informaticon:

William H. Gillespie, Assistant Commissiconer

Telephone 548-2203 or 348-3550







WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATIVE REGULATIONS .
STATE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE  FILED
Chapter 18-16B R

SERIES Xlla

TITLE: West Virginia Pesticide Use and Application Act

Section 1. Generel

1.1 Scope - These Legislative regulations amend and promulgate Section
1 through 20 of the regulaticns and establish general operating rules and
procedures for the enforcement of the West Vlrgln.a Pesticide Use and Application
Act as Amended 1981 {Articie 16B) including, but not limited to, the certification
of users of restricted use pesticides, the licensing of firms enoly‘mg pesticides
for hire, restiricted use pesticides and the dezlers in resiricted use pestzczdes,
record keeping and standards for certification and licensing. :

1.2 Authority - W. Va. Code 189-18B-4

1.3 Filing Date -

1.4 Effective Date -

1.5  Amendment of Former Regulation - This Legislative regulation amends

the following West Virginia Pesticide Use and Application Act, Series XIla, Section
1.3; 1.4; 13.1; 13,2,

Section 2, Declaration of Policy

Article 16B, Chapter 19, Code of West Virginia places the enforcement
of the West Virginia Pesticide Use and Application Act with the Commissioner
and empowers him tc promulgate rules and regulations for regulation in the
public interest of the use and spplication ¢f pesticides in West Virginia,

Section 3, Definitions -

3.1 TFor the purpose of these regulations, the definitions shall be the
same as those appearing in the West Virginia Pesticide Use and Application Act
(18-16B-3) _

3.1.1 The term "acecident” mesns an unexpected, undesirable event,
resulting in the presence of a pesticide, that adversely effects man or the
environment.

3.1.2 The term "Act means the West Virginia Pesticide Use and
AppHcaticn Act (1%:16B)

1.3 The term "consisient" means properly gualified to perform
functions associasted with pesticide application, the degree of capahility required
being directly related to the nature of the activity and the associated responsibility.
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3.1.4 The term "fumigant' means a gaseocus or readily
veclatizable chemical (as hydrogen cyanide or methyl bromide) used as
2 disinfectant or pesticide.

3.1.5 The term "fumigation” means the application of z
fumigant to ome or more rooms in & structure, or to the entire strycture
such as a box car, aircraft, truck, ship or any object sealed or covered.

3.1.6 The term "regulated pest' means 2 specific organism
considered by the state or by a federal agency to be a2 pest reguiring
regulatory restrictions, rsgulations or contrel procedures in order o
protect man or the environment. '

Section- 4. BRestricted Use Pesticides

4.1 This section is reserved for the West Virginia Restricted Use
Pesticide List. (See Appendix Number I)

Section 5. Categorization of Commercial Applicators
- B )
3.1 Procedure - -----—

5.1.1 Cztegories and sub-categeries of applicators (other
than privace applicators) who use or supervise the use of restricted use
pesticides are identified below., Public emplovees using or supervising
the use of restricted use pesticides are Certified Public Applicators
in the categories_and sub-categories identified below and are catego-
crized as Commercial’gpplicators'with rTegpect to Restricted Usa Pesticides.

2.1.2 Tt shall be understood throughout these regulations
that, according to 19-16B-8(2), =211 persons applving any pesticides as,
or -for, 2 Licensed Pesticide Applicaztion Business, whether or not they
are 2pplying or supervising the application of restricted use pesticides,
mist bea commercial applicator or be under the supervision of a commercial
applicator certified in the appropfiate category or sub-categeries
identified below and that the fact thar their need for cercification,
wherher or not the pesticides are for restricted use, will not be specif~
ically pointed out in the description 6f each category or sub-category
to follow. ' -

5.2 Agriculture FPlant Pest Control Category — This category includes
commercizl applicators using or supervising the use of restricted use
pesticides in the production of agricultural crops, including without
limiting the foregoing, tobacco, peafuts, cotton, faed grains, sovbeans
and forage, vegetables, smzll fruits, tree fruits and wnuts, as well as
on grasslands and nen-crop agricultural lands.

5.2.1 Sub-Category A-1 agricultural Plant Pest Control Aerial
Applicator - This sub-category includes commercial zpplicators using or
supervising the use of restricted use pesticides applied by any tvpe of
aircrait in the production of agricultural crops, including without
limiting the foregeing, tobacco, peanuts, cotton, [zed grains, soybeans,
anc forage, vegetables, small fruits, tree fyrpits, and nuts, as well as
on grasskands and non-crop agricultural lands.

J
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5.3 Animal Pest Control - This category inciudes commercial
applicators using or supservising the use of restricted use pesticides
on swine, sheep, horses, goats, poultry and livestock, and tec places
cn or in which animzls are confined.’

5.4 TForest Pest Control Category - This category includes ..
commercial applicators using or supervising the use ¢f restricted use
pesticides in forests, forest nurseries, and forest seed producing
areas.

5.4.1 Sub-Categeorvy A - Aerial Forest Pest Control - This
category includes commercial spplicators using or supervising the use
of restricted use pesticidas applied by any typs of aircraft in forests,
forest nurseries and forest seed producing arsas.

5.5 Oraamental and Turf Pest Contreol Category ~ This category
includes commercial applicators using or supervising the use of
restricted use pesticides toc control pests in the maintenance and
production of ormamental trees, shrubs, flowers and turf.

3.3.,1 BSub-Category & - Aerial Ormamental and Turi Past
Control - This category includes commercial applicators using or super-—
vising the use of restricted use pesticides applied by any tvype of
aircrafit to control pests in the maintenance and production of
ornamental trees, shrubs;'flowers and turf.

5.6 Seed Treatment Category — This category includes commercial
applicators using or supervising the use of restricted use pESthWGES
o seeds.

3.7 4quatic Pest Control Categery - This category includes
commercial applicators using or supervising the use of any restricted
use pesticide purposefully applied to standing or running water,
axcluding applicators engaged in public heazlth related actLV1t1es
included in category 5.10.1 below!

5.7.1 Sub~Categeory A - 4erial Aquatic Pest Control - This
category includes commercial applicators usiang or supervising the use
of any restricted use pesticide purposefully applied by mesns of any
type of aircrzft to standing or running water.

5.8 Right-0f-Way Pest Control Category — This category includes
commercial applicators using or supervising the use oI restricted use
pesticides in the maintenance oI roads, electric powerlines, pipelines,
railway rights—-of-way or other similar areas.

5.8.1 Sub-Category A - Aerial Right-cof-Way Pest Control
includes commercial applicators using cor supervising the use of re-
stricted use pesticides. zpplied by any type of aircraft in the main-
tenance of roads, electric powerlines, pipelines, railway rights-cf-way
or other similar aress.

5.9 Industrial, Institutional, Structural and Hezlth Related Pest
Control — Commercial applicators in this categery are sub-categorized

ag follows:
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5.9.1 Generzl Pest Control - This sub-category includas
commercial applicators using or supervising the use of restricted use
pesticides in, on, or around fcod handling establishments, human
dwellings, institutions such as schools and hospitals, industrial
establishments, including warehouses and grain elsvators, and any other
structures and adjacent areas, public or privare; znd feor the protecticn
of stored, progessed, or manufzctured products except that this sub-
category does not include applicators using fumigants (other than fumi-
gants used cut-oi-doors in rodent burrows that <o not lead into dwellings
or other structures), por does it include applicators engaged in termite
or other structural psst control.

5.%.1.1 Treating emergency cravices or ant runwavs to
control carpenter ants or treatments made to
control carpenter bees or surface application
of spraws to control wood borers in furniture
or lumber shall nct be considered to be struec-
tural pest contrel.

579.2 Stxuctural Pest Control - This sub-category includes
commercial applicators using or supervising the use of restricred use
pesticides tc control termites, powder post beetles, or other wood-
destroving pests infesting human dwellings, schools, hospitals, stores,
warehouses or any other structure zand zdjscent areas.

5.9.3 Fumigation Pest Control - This sub-category includes
comnercial zpplicators using or supervising the use qf restricted use
pesticides to fumigate human dwellings, schoels, hospitals, stores,
warehouses, grain elevators, or any other structure including box cars,
trucks, automobiles, shipping containers, boats, barges or ships, or
other similzar objects as well as commodities such as lumber, hav or
straw, food produsts, seill, bags or other objects whether they ars in
structures or fumigated out-of—doo;s.

5.9.4 TIndustrial, Institutional Vegetation Management - This
sub-category includes commercisl zpplicetors using or supervising the
use cf restrictad use pesticides to control uynwanted vegetation around
industrial or institutionmal structures on grounds, storage vards, sub-
stations or cother araas exclusive cof rights-of-way but mayv include
vegetation management along driveways or access roads to the zbove type
sites. Individuals desiring zerial applicators certification in this
sub-category must held a wvalid Agricultural Applicator Certification from
the United States Federzl Aviation Agency.

5.9.5 Hezalth Related Zest Control. - This sub-category includes
commercial applicators using or supervising the ussz of restricted uss
pesticides to contrel pests having medical or public health importance in
other than aguatic sites. Individuals desiring zerizl applicator certi-
fication in this sub-category must hold a wvalid Agricultural Applicater
Certification from the United States Federal Aviation Agency.

5.10 Certified Public Applicator Category - In addicion to the
categories and sub-categories identified asbove in which a public emplovee
under the law may be classified, the following additional sub-categories
are identified below:

-
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5.10.1 Sub-Category A - Public Health Pest Contrel - This
sub-category includes state, federzl or other governmental employees
using or supervising the use of restricted use pesticides in public
health programs for management and contrel of pests having medical and
public health importance.

5.10.2 Regulatory Pest Control - This sub-category includes
state, federzl or cther governmental employees who use or supervise the
use of restricted use pesticides in the control of regulated pests.

5.11 Demonstration and Research Pest Control Category - This cate-
gory includes individuals who demonstrate tc the public the proper use
and techniques of application of restricted use pesticides or supervise
such demonstraticn.

5.11.1 This category also includes persons conducting
field research with pesticides, and in dodng so, use or supervise the use
of restricted use pesticides.

5.11.2 Included in the Demonstration Pest Contrel category
are such persons as extension specialists and county agents, commercial B
representatives demonstrating pesticide productsg, and those individuals
demonstrating methods used in public progrsms. The Reasearch Pest Control
category includes: 3tate, Federal, commercial and other persons conducting
field research on or utilizing restricted use pesticides.

5.12 Other (ztegories or Sub-Categories — The commissioner may, after

a public hearing, add additional categories or sub-categories as needed
Lor the certification of commercial applicators.

Section 6. Standards for Certificaztion of Commercial Applicaztors {(Including
Certified Public Applicators)

6.1 Determination of Competeﬁcy - Competency in the use and handling
of pesticides shall be determined om the basis of written examinaztions, and,
as appropriate, performance testing, based upon standards set forth below
and which are approved by the Commissioner. Such examination and testing
shall include the general standard applicable to all cztegories and the
additional standards specifically identified for each category or sub-
category (if any) in which an applicator is to be classified. Written

zaminaticons shall be given at such times and places as the commissioper
may direct. Correctly answering seventy percent or more of the questions
shall be considered tc be satisfactory evidence of competence. Failure
to answer at least 707 of the guestions correctly shall be grounds for
denizl of certificaticn and at least thirty (30) days must pass before

an azpplicant mey apply for re-exaumination. Wo fee shall be required for
re—-cxamination.

6.2 General Standard For All Categories 0f Certified Commercial
Applicators - ALl commercial applicators shall demonstrate practical knowl-
edge cf the principles and practices of pest control and safe use cof .
pesticides. Testing shall be basad on examples of problems and situations
appropriate to the particular category or sub-category of the applicator's
certification and the following areas of competency:
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‘

6.2.1 Label and Labeling Comprehensicn

£.2.1.1 The general formsat and terminclogy of pESulcﬁde
labels and labeling;

6.2.1.2 The understanding of instructions, warnings, terms,
symbols, and other information commonly appearing

on pesticide labels;

5.2.1.3 Classificztion of the product, general or restricted:
and

6.2.1.4 WNecessity for use ccnsistent with the lzbel.

£.2.2.1 Pesticide toxicity and hazard to man and common
exposure routes;

£.2.2.2 Common tvpes and causes of pesticide accidents;
6.2.2.3 Precautions necessary tc guard against injury to
avplicators and cother individuals in or near

treated areas;

6.2.2.4 Need for and use of protective clothing and
equipnment;

6.2.2.5 BSymptoms of pesticide poisoning;

6.2.2.6 TFirst aid and other procsadures to be fpllowed in
case of pesticids zccident; and,

6.2.2.7 Proper identification, storage, transpert, handling,
mixing procedures and disposal methods for pesti-

cides and pesticids conteiners.

nment ~ The potentizal environmental consequences of
cides as may be influenced by such factors as:

6.2.3.1 Weather andé other climatic conditions;
6.2.3.2 Types of terrain, soil or other substrate;

6.2.3.3 Presence of £ish, wildlife and other non-target
organisms; and,

6.2.3.4 Drainage patterns.
6.2.4 Pests - Factors such as:

6.2.4.1 Common features of pest organisms and character-
istics of damage needed for pest recognition;
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6.2.4.2 Recognition of relevant pests; and,

6.2.4.3 Pest development and biology 25 it may be relevant
to problem identification and control.

6.2.5 Pesticides - Factors such as:
6.2.5.1 Types of pesticides;
£.2.5.2 7Types of formulations;

6.2.5.3 Compatibility, synergism, persistence and animal and
plant toxicity of the formulations;

£.2.5.4 Hazards and residues asscciated with use;

6.2.5.3 Factors which influence effectiveness or lead o
such problems as resistence to pesticides; and,

6.2.5.6 Dilution procedurss.
6.2.6 <Eguipment -~ Factors Including:

6.2.6.1 Types of equipment and advantages znd limitations of
each type; and,

6.2.6.2 Uses, maintenance and calibration.

6.2.7 Application Techniques - Factors imcluding:

6.2.7.1 Methods of procedure used to apply various formulations
of pesticides, solutions, and gases, together with a
knowledgze of which technigue of appiication to use in
a given situation;

6.2.7.2 Relationship of discharge and plzcement of pesticides
to proper use, umnnecassary uss, and misuse; and,

6.2.7.3 Prevention of drift and pesticide loss into the
environment.

6.3 Specific Standards of Competency for Each Category of Commercial
Applicators -~ Some of the factors referenced in this section are of
particular importance of the different types of zctivities carried out
by applicators in eazch category. For example, practical knowledge
of drift problems should be reguilred of agricultural applicators but not
of seed treatment applicators. The latter, however, should be particularly
knowledgezable of the hazzards of the misuse of trezted seed znd the
necessary precautionary techniques. Commercial applicators in each
category snall be particulerly qualified with respect t¢ the practical
knowledge standards elaborated below:
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6.3.1 Agricultural Plant Pest Control Category - Applicators
must demonstrate practical knewledge of crops grown and the specific
pests cf those crops on which they may be using restricted use pesticides.
The importance of such competency is amplified by the axtensive areas
involved, the quantities of pesticides needed, and the ultimate use
of mzny commodities as food and feed. TPractical knowledge is required
concerning soil and water problems, pre-harvest intervals, re-entry
intervals, phytotoxicity, and potentisl feor envircnmental contaminzcion,
non-target injury and community problems resulting {rom the use of
restricted use pesticides in agricultural areas.

6.3.1.1 Sub-Category A - Agricultural Plant Pest control
Aerizl Applicator - In zddition to demecnstrating competence in the specific
standards for the sub-categoryv Agriculrsural Plaznt Pest Control, the
aerial applicator must hold a valid Agricultural Applicator Certificaticn
from the Federal Aviation Agency.

6.32.2 Animal Pest Control - Applicators applying pesticides
directly to animals must demonstrate practical knowledge of such animals
and their associated pests. 4 practical knowledge is also reguired
concerning specific pesticide toxicity and residus potential, since most
animals will frequently be used for feood. Further, the applicator
must know the relative hazards associzafed with such factors as formulation,
application, zpplication techniques, azge of animels, stress and extent
of treatment. )

6.3.23 7 Farest Pest Control - Applicators shall demonstrate
practical knowledge of types of forests, forest nurseries, and forest
seed production in West Virginia and the pests inveolved. They should
possess practical knowledge of the cyclic occurrence of certain pests
and specific pepulatien dynamics 25 & basis for programming pesticide
applications. & practical knowledge is required of the relative biotic
agents and their vulmerability to the pesticides te be applied.
Beczuse Iorest stands may be large and frequentlv include natural
aquatic habitats and harbor wildlife, the consequencas of pesticide
use may be difficult to assess. The applicator must therefore demonstrate
prectical knowledge of control methods which will minimize the pessibility
of secondary problems such as unintended effects on wildlife. Proper
use of specialized equipment must be demonstrated, especially as it
may relate to meteorclogiczl factors and adjacent iand use.

£.3.3.1 Sub-Category AB- Asrial Forest Pest Control -
In addition to demeonstrating competence in the specific standards for
sub-category Forest Pest Control, the zerial appiicator must hold a
valid Agriculrural Applicator Certification frem the Federal Aviaticn
Agency.

6.3.4 COrnamental and Turf Pest Control - Applicators shall
demonstrate practical knowledge of pesticide problems associated with
the production and maintenance of ornamental trees, shrubs, plantings,
and turf, including cognizance of potential phnvtotoxicity due to a2 wide
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variety of plant material, drift and persistence beyond the intended
period of pest control. Because of the frequent proximity of human
habitarion to applicetion activities, applicators in this category

must demonstrate practical knowledge of application methods which will
minimize or prevent hazards to humans, pets, and other domestic animals.

6.3.4.1L . Sub-Category A — Aerial Ornamentzal and Turf Pest
Control — In addition rfo demonstrating cempetence iIn the specific standards
for the sub—category Ornmamental and Turf FPest Control, the aerial
applicator must hold & valid Agricultural Applicator Certification
from the Federal Aviation Agency.

6.3.5. Secd Treatment Category — Applicators shall demonstrate
practical knowledge of types of seads that require chemical protection
against pests and factors such as seed colorztion, carriers and suriace
active agents which infiluence pesticides binding and may affect
germination. They must demonstrate practical knowledge of hazards
associated with handling, sorting and mixing, and misuse of treated
sead such as introducticn of treated seed inte food and feed channels,
as well as proper disposal of unused treated seads.

€.3.6 Aguatic Pest Control Category — Applicators shall
demonstrate practical knowledge of the secondary effects which can be
caused by improper application rates, incorrect formulations, and
faultv application of pesticides used in this category. They shall
demonstrate practical knowladge of various water use situaticns and
the potential of downstreasm effects. Further, they must have practical
knowledge concerning potential pesticide effects on plants, £ish, birds,
beneficial insects and other organisms which may be present in aquatic
environments. These applicators shall demonstrate practical knowledge
of the principles of limited area applications.

5.3.6.1 Sub- Ca;ecoryJA terial Aquatic Pest Contrcl -
In addition to demcnstrating compe*epce in the specific standards Ior
the sub-category Aquatic Pest Control, the aerial applicators must hold
a valid Agricultural Applicator Certification from the Federal Aviation
Agency.

£.3.7 Rights-of-Way Pest Control Category - Applicators shall
demonstrate a practical knowledge of = wide variety of envircnments,
since rights—cf-way can traverse many different terrazins, including
waterways. They shall demonstrate practical knowledge of problems on
runoff, drift,and excessive folizge destruction and ability oo recognize
target organisms. They shall zlsc demonstrate practiczl knowledge
of the nature of herbicides and the need for containment of these
pesticides within the right-of-way area, zand the impact of their appiication
activities in the adjacent areas and cogmunities.

6.3.7.1 Sub-Category A — Asrizl Right-of-Way Pest Control -

It addirion to dédmonstrating competence in the specific standards for
the sub-category Right-cf-Way Control, the zerial applicater must heold
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a valid Agricultural Applicator Certification from the Federal Aviation
Agency.

6.3.8 TIndestrial, Institutional, Structural and Health Related
Past Comtrol Category — Applicators in each sub-category of this category
{General, Structural, Fumigacion znd Vegetation Management and Health
Relsted Pest Conmtrel), must demonstrate a practical knowledge of a wide
variety of pests, including their 1ife cvcles, types of fgormulation
appropriate for their control, and methods of zpplication used in the
appiicators sub-categery that aveld contamination of food, damags and
contamination ¢f habitat, and exposure of people and pets. Since human
expcsure, including bsbies, children, pregnant women, and slderly pecple,
is Ifrequently 2 potentiel prcblem, applicators must demonstrate practical
knowledge of the specific factors which may lead to a hazardous conditicn,
including centinuous exposure in the varicus situations encountered in
these sub-categories. Because health relzted pest control may involve
cutdoor applicaticns, applicators must zlse demonstrate practical knowledge
of envirconmental conditions, particularly related te this activicy.

65.3.9 Certified Public Applicator Category -

6.3.9.1 ~Sub~Category A - Public EHealth Pest Control -
Applicators shizall demonstrate practical knowledge of vector-—-disease
transmission as it relates to and influences application programs.
& wide variety of pests is involved, and it is essential that they be
known and recognized, and approprizte life cycles and habitats be understood
as a basis for contrdl strategy. These applicators shall have practical
knowledge of a great variety of envirconments ranging from streams to
these conditicns found in buildings. They should also have practical
knowledge of the importance and employment of such non-chemical control -
methods as sanitation, waste disposal, and drazinage.

£.3.9.2 BSub-Category B - Regulatory Pest Control -
Applicatcors shall demonstrate practical knowledge of regulated pests,
applicable laws relating to quarantine and other regulations of pests,
and the potential impact on ths envircnment of restricted use pesticides
used in suppression and eradication programs. -They shall demonstrate
knowledge of factors inflvencing introducticm, sprsad, znd population
dvnamics of relgvant pests. Their knowledge shsll extend beyvend that
required by their immediate duties, since their services are frequently
required in other areazs where emergency measures are invoked to control
regulated pests and where individual judgements must be made in new
gituations. )

6-3-10 Demonstraticns and Research Fest Control Category -
Persons demonstrating the salfe and effective uze of pesticides to other
applicators and the public will be expected to meet comprehensive standards
reflecting a broad spectrum of pesticide uses., Many different pest
problem situzations will be encountered in the course of acitivities™
associaced with demonstraticn, and practical knowledge of problems, pests,
and population levels cccurring in each demeonstration situation is
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required. Further, they should demonstrate an understanding of pesticide-
organism inter-actions and the importance ¢of integrating pesticide use

with other control methods. 1In general, it would be expected that

applicaters doing demonstraticn pest control work possess a2 practical --
knowledge of (all of the standards detailed in section 6.2 above. 1In

addition, they shall meet the specific standards required for categories

6.3.1 through 6.3.7 of this section as may be applicable to their

particular activity.

£.3.10.1 Persons conducting field research or method
improvement work with restricted use pesticides would be expected to know
the gensral standards detaziled in 6.2 zbove. 1In addition, they shall be
expected to know the specific standards required for section 6.3.1
through 6.3.9 of this section, applicable to their particular activity,
or alternatively, to meet the more inclusive requirements listed under
"Demonstration”.

6.4 Specizl Standards - This space reserved for possible issuance
of . Special Standards, aifter due pubiic hearing.

6.5 The Above Standards Do Not aApply To The Following Persons For
Purpose c¢f These Regulatioms: '

6.5.1 Persons conducting laboratory type research involving
restricted use pesticides; and,

6.5.2 Doctors of Medicine, Doctors ¢ Ostecopathy, and Doctors
of Veterinary Medicime apply pesticides as drugs of med*caulon during
the course of their normal practice.

6.6 Standards For Licensed Pesticide Application Business License -

6.6.1 Perscns applying for z Licernsed Pesticide Application
Business License shall be expected £o demonstrate a knowledge and under-
standing of the state and federal .Pesticide laws, safe use and storzge
of pesticides, and the basis of the work to be done under the classification
or classifications for which azpplication for license is being made.

6.6.2 The classification of Licensed Pesticide Applicatien
Business License shall include agriculturazl pest control, forest pest
control, ornamental and turf pest contrel, seed freatment, aquatic . _
pest control, right-of-way pest control, general pest control, fumigstion
pest control, vegetation menagement, nealth related and structural pest
control. Separate sub-classifications for zerial applicators license
apply te agricultursl pest control, forest pest control, ornamental and
turf pest control, aguatic pest contxol, Vegotation management and health
related and rlghu—of—way pest control,

Secticn 7. Standards for Certification of Private Applicators -

7.1 Standards - Competence in the use and handling cf pesticides
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by a private applicator will be determined by procedures set forth below.
As & minimum requirement Ifor certification a private applicator must show
that he possesses & practical knowledge of the pest problems and pest
control practices associated with his agricultural ocperaticns; and his
related legzl respensibility. This practical knowledge includes ability
to: - .

7.1.1. Recognize common pests to be controlled and damage
causaed by them.

7.1.2 Read and understand the label and labeling information -
including the common name of pesticides he applies; pest(s) to be contrelled,
timing and methods of application; safety precautions; anv pre-harvest
or re—entry restrictions; and specific disposal procedures.

7.1.3 Apply pesticides in accordance with label instructions
and warnings, including the =bilicy to prepare the proper concentraticn
of pesticide to be used under particular circumstances taking inte acccount
such factors as area to be covered, speed at which zpplicaticn eguipment
will be driven, and the quantity dispersed in a given pericd cof operatiom.

7.1.4  Recognize leocal envirommental situations that must
be comsidered during zpplication to a2void contamination.

7.1.5 Recognize poisoning symptoms and procedures to follow
in case of =z pestlicide accident. -

7.2 Determination ©f Competency - Such competence of each private
applicator shall be verified by the adminstration of 2 private applicstor
certification system which ensures that the private applicator is competent,
based upon the standards set forth above, to use the restricted use
pesticides under limitations of applicable state and federal laws and
regulations. The certification system shall employ & written or oral
demonstration of competence, or such other equivalent system as may be
approved by the commissioner. TFailure to demenstrate competence by
correctly answering at least 70% of the questions asked shall be grounds
for denial of certification. However, the applicant may apply for
re-—examination._. C e =

7.3 Provisions for Illiterzcy - In any case where a person, at
the time of testing for certification, is unable to rszd & label, the
commissicner may employ a2 testing procedure, previecusly approved by the
Administrator, United States Environmental Protection Agency, which can
adequately zssess the competence of such person with regard to 21l of the -
above standards. Certification must be related and limited to the use
and handling of each individual pesticide for which he desires certification
at any time. Therefcre, the applicator will be zuthorized to use only
the pesticides: for which he has demonstrated competence.

7.3.1 Such demonstration of competence must include the
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recognition of the common or trade nzme of the pesticide as well as the
label. In addition, the demonstration of competence must include the
ability te verbally tell the registered uses of the pesticide as they

apply to the applicators intended uses, the recommended doses, the proper
times of application for the particular paescs to be controlled, safety
precautions, handling and disposal cf the pesticide and its

container. In addition, the applicator must demonstrate that he understands
any re-entry or pre-harvest restrictions that apply to the particular
pesticide and must know the various sources ¢f advice and guidance available
to him te assist him in understanding the safe and proper use of each
pesticide related to his certificatiom.

Saction 8. Standards For Supervision of Non-Certified Applicators By
Certified Private and Commercial Applicators -

8.1 Gensrzl - Certified applicators whose activities indicate a
supervisory role must demonstrate a2 practical knowledge of federal and
state supervisory regquirements, including labeling, regarding the application
of restricted use pesficides by non-certified applicators.

8.1.1 The availability of the certified applicater must be
directly related to the hazard of the situation, the complexictyv of the
application or the ability to readily communicate with the non-certiiied
applicator. i : -

8.2 Supervision in Fumigation or Structural Pest Control - In the
case of Fumigaticn Pest Control a certifiad commercisl zpplicator certified
in fumigztion pest control must be physically present to apply or supervise
the application of fumigants. In the case of Structural Pest Control
pesticide applications a certified applicator certified in structural
pest control must be physically present to apply or supervise the
application of pesticides or must provide the applicator being supervised
specific written instructions which shall iInclude but not be limited
to: /

8.2.1 The address or location of the structure to be treated.

8.2.2 The name (and address if different than 8§.2.1) of the
owner, manager, tenant or other person ordering the structural pest
cotritrol work to be done.

8.2.3 The name of the certified commercizl applicator
supervising the use of the pesticides.

The pest or pests against which the pesticide(s)

4
are to be ap ed. —- - R

nane .
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8.2.6 A diagram of the structure tc be treated showing the
sites at which pesticides are to be applied, hazard sites, such as wells,
the location(s) of actual pest infestations if any exist and any other
information pertinent to the application of pesticides at the particular
site.

8.2.7 Special precaution orders for the azpplicator's safety
such as the uss of protective clothing, respirators or other safety gear.

8.2.8 The name(s) of the persons making the pasticide
applications. ’

8.2.9 The date(s) pesticides are to be applied znd the quantity
cf each pesticide to be used,

8.2.10 Specific instructions for contacting the supervising
certified applicator.

8.3 When the perscns applying pesticides to a structure must
deviate from the written instructions of the supervising certified
applicator, such deviation must be moted on or attached to. the written
instructions and signed by the applicator or on site supervisocr. These-
specific written imsrtructions and other details shall be considered
as pesticide use records znd shall be maintained for =zt least three
vears. - B

8.4 1In other situations the pesticide label may require the certified
applicator tc be physically present. When the certified applicator is
not required to be physically present, "direct supervision” shall include
verifiable instructicns to the competent person, as follows:

8.4.1 Detailed guidance for applying the pesticide property, and

] v
8.4.2 Provisions for-contacting the certified applicator
in the event he is needed.

Section 9. Faderal Agency Pesticide Applicators -

9.1 Certification — When an emploves of any agency of the United
States Government has been qualified iIn any category as competent to
apply restricted use pesticides under the Government Agency Plan (GAP),
or under other plans judged by the commissioner to be at lezst equal to
the West Virginia Plan, such emplovee will be certifisd by the commissioner
in the same category or categoriss without the need for a written
examination nor for the pzyment of any fee,

9.2 Qualification For Certification - Federal emplovees gualifisd
under zn acceptable federal plan to apply restricted use pesticides,
and who intend to apply restricted use pesticides in West Virginia as
a part ox their agency work, shall present their gqualifying documents
to the Commissioner and, if zcceptable, these documents will be endorssd
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or a state document will be issued which will permit the federzl emplovee
to use restricted use pesticides in West Virginia.

§.3 ZEmergency Situations - If, in an emergency situation, federzl
emplovees are brought into West Virginia to control cr eradicate pests,
and when these employees have been properly qualified to use restricted
use pesticides under the plan of another state or under an acceptable
federal government agency plan, such employee will ba considered to be
certified in West Virginia and he or his agency must, within 10 davs,
present qualifying credentizls to the commissioner. t this time, state
credentials will be issued if the emplovee is te remain in West Virginia
as an applicator of restricted use pesticides. The provisions of this
section do not apply to non-faderzl employees contracted to perform
pesticide applications for the federal government. Ip an emergency,
however, and with the concurrence of the commissioner, a properly
certified federal applicator may act in 2 supervisory capacity of a
non-federal applicator provided that applicator is properly certified
in West Virginia or under the plan of another state. Within 10 days such
non-fedsral applicator certified in znother state must apply for West
Virginia certification in the normal manner.

Section 10. Reciprocity

10.1 Commercial Applicaters — When 2 commercial applicztor is
certified under the state plan of another state and desires to cperate
as a commercial applicator in West Virginiz, he shall make application
to the commissioner and shall include, zalong with the proper fee and
other details required by the ACT, a true copy of his credentials certifying
him a5 2n applicator of restricted use pesticides in another state.
The commissioner then may, 1f he approves the credentials, issue a
West Virginia certification to the applicator in the category(izs)
for which he is certified in znother state, without a written examination,
provided that the state having certified the applicator will similarly
certify holders of West Virginiz eérrificates.

10.2 Private Applicators - When 2 private applicator is certified
under the state plan of another state and owns, leases or menages land
in West Virginiz on which restricted use pesticides must be applied
te produce agricultural crops, the commissioner will issue a2 West Virgingas
Private Applicator Certification on receipt of a properly completed
application, proper fes and a true copy of the applicant’'s out-oi-state
certification.

Section 11. Standards £¢ér Licensing of Dealers of Rastrictad Use Pesticides

11.1 Determination of Ccmpetency ~ An applicant for license to
sell restrictaed use pesticides must demonstrate a knowledge and under-
standing of safe and acceptable methods of handling, storage znd
distribution of restricted use pesticides as well as knowledge and
understanding of the state pesticide laws. Such demonstraticn of
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knowledgze shall be determined on the basis of a written examination.
Fzilure to correctly answer at least 707 of the guestions asked shall be
grounds for denial of certification and at least 30 days nust pass bzfeore
the dealer may apply for re-examinaticn., No fee shzll be required for
re-examination.

11.2 Generzl Standards for Dezlers of Restricted Use Pesticides -
All dealers licensed to sell restricted use pesticides shall demonstrate
a practical knowledge of the types of pesticides he sells including but
not limited to: lazbels and label comprehension; classification of
pesticides and necessity for use consistent with the label; safety
including: safe use and safe environment; symptoms of pesticide
poisoning; type of pesticides and pesticids formulation; dilution
procedures and applicztion techniques.

Section 12. "Recotrds .

12.1 Commercial Applicators and Certified Public Applicators -
Commercizl zpplicators including certified public applicators shall, for
a period of three years from the date of application, keep records
detailing the application of restricted use pesticides applied by them or
under their superviszien to include:

12.1.1 The pesticide used;

12.1.2 The formulation used aznd the guantity ¢f that
formulation used. In the case of applicators in the sub-category General
Pest Contrel, the records for quantity used may be kept as a total
quantity used per day by each applicater when less than 1 gallon of
use dilution spray or onme pound of dusts, powders or prepared rodenticide
baits are used at any one locztion. When more than these amounts are
used at one locatiom, records for that location shall be kept.

. .
12.1.3 The date and place of application.
12.1.4 The pest against which the pesticide was usad.
12.1.5 The applicator’s name.

12.2 Licensed Pesticide Applicetion Business - Licensed pesticide
application businesses shall, for a period of. three years from the date
of application, keep records detziling the application of pestidides,
whether or not the pesticides are classified for restricted use, to
include:

12.2.1 The pesticide used.
12.2.2 The formulation used and the quantity of that

formilation used. In the case of applicators in the sub-category
General Pest Control, the records for quantity usad may be kept as the
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tofal guantity used per day by each applicator when less than 1 gallon
of use dilution spray or one pound of dusts, powders or prepared rodenticide
balts are used at any one location. When mere than these amounts are
used at one location, records for that location shzall be kept.

12.2.3 The date and place of application.

12.2.4 The pest against which the pesticide was used.

12.2.5 The applicator’s name.

12.3 Dealers ©f Restricted Use Pesticides - Dealers of restricted

use pesticides shall keep and maintain for 2 period of three years records
on the sale or other disposition of restricted use pesticides to include

the fcllowing:

12.3.1 Pesticides sold, or otherwise dispcsed of, including
formulation. For example, Sevin 80% W.P.

12.3.2 Quantity. For example, 50 pounds.
12.3.3 Date of sale or disposition.

12.3.4 ©HNHame and address cof purchaser or receiver, including
the certified applicater's identification number.

Section 13. Financisl Security Reguired of Licensed Pesticide Applicatrion
Businesses

13.1 Amounts - The commissicner shall not issue a2 licensed pesticide
application business license until the applicant has filed evidence of
financial security with the commissionmer, which may consist of a surety
bond or liability insurance policy or certification thersof from an
insurance cempany licensed to do business in West Virginia. Such Ffinancisl
security shall be in the amountis listed for each category of licensed
pesticide azpplicztion business.

The type of insurance coverage shall be inm the form of Comprehensive
General Liability with a Brozd Form Gemeral Liability Supplement. If
the insurance coverage specifically excludes liability arising from the
purposeful use or appiication of pesticides, an additional insurance
rider or suretv hond must be secured in a minimum amount of $25,000.00
to provide such financial security.

13.1.1 Agriculture Plant Pest Control - An applicant for
license in this category shall file evidence of financizl security in the
minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dellars ($300,000.00) combined
single limit for bodily injury or death and property damsage.
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13.1.2 Apimal Pest Control - An applicant for licemse in this
category shall file evidence of financial security in the minimum amount
of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) combined single limit
for bodily injury or death and property damage.

13.1.3 Forxest Pest Control — An applicant for license in this
category shall file evidence of fipancial secufity in the minimum amount
of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) combined single limit

for bedily injury or death and property damage,

13.1.4 Ornamental and Turf Pest Contrel -~ An applicant for
license in this category shall file evidence of financial security in the
mindimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) combined
single limit for bodily injury or death and property damage.

13.1.53 Seed Treatment - An applicant for license in this category
shall file evidence of financial security in the minizum amount of
Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) combined single limit for
bodily injury or death and property damage.

13.1.6 Aguatic Pest Control - An applicant for license in this
category shzll file evidence of financial security in the minimum amount
of Threes Hundred Thousand Dollars (8300,000.00) combined single limit
for bodily injury or death sand property damage.

12.1.7 Right-of-Way Pest Control - An applicant for licsnse
in this category shall file evidence of financial security in the
minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars (3300,000.00) combined
single 1imit for bodily injury or death and property damage.

13.1.8 TIndustrial, Institutional, Structural and Hezalth
Related Pest Control - An applicant for licemse in this category shall file
avidence of fimancial security in the minimum amount of Three Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) combined single limit for bodily injury
or death and property damage.

13.2 Aerial Applicarors - Aerial Applicators in the above categories
cr sub-categeries shall show evidence of financizl security for public
liability and chemical application in the minimum amount of Three Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) for bodily injury or death snd One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for property damage.

13.3 Liability for Pesticide Use - Nothing in these regulations shall
be construed in any way te relieve any person from liebility for any
damage to the perscn or lands of another caused bv the use of pesticides
even though such use conforms to the rules and regulations of the
commissioner.
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Section l4. Stoving and Dispesal of Pesticides and Pesticide Containers -

14.1 Prohibited Acts - No person shall digpose of or store (or
receive for disposal or storzge) any pestlc1ae, pesticide container or
pesticide container residue:

lé.i;l In =z manner inceonsistent with its label or labeling;

14.1.2 So as to cause or allow the open dumping of pesticides
cr pesticide containers;

14.1.3 S0 as to cause or allow open burning of pesticides
or pesticide containers: except: the open burning by the user of small
quantities of combustible containers (not tco exceed 50 1bs.) containing
pesticides other than those containing organic mercury, chlorates, lead,
cedmium, or arsenic compounds, is zacceptzble when allcwed by state or
local regulations and when due regard is given. to wind direction in relation
to the protection of crops, animals and people from the pesticide wvapors
created through burning;

-

14.1.4 So as to cause or allow dumping of pesticides in any
stream, river, pend, sewer or lake, except in conformance with permits
issued by the West Virginia Department of Natural Rescurces or other
state agency having jurisdiction regarding water pollution;

14.1.5 B8So as to viclate any applicable state or federal
pollution control standard.

14.2 Recommended Procedures - Recommended pesticide and pesticide
container disposal procedures shall permit the disposal of containers
of pesticides registered for use in the home and garden if securely wrapped
in several layers of paper and disposed of singly during routine punicipal
solid waste disposal and disposal of pesticides and pesticide containers
on farms where disposal by open- field burizl ¢f single containers is
undertaken wvth due regard te the protection of surface and sub- suV;ace
waters. B B

14.2.1 Until such time as the commissioner aiong with the

Pesticide Adviscry Beozsrd, and any other person as the commissioner may
comsult, promulgate more specific rules and regulaztions covering the
dispesal and storage of pesticides and pesticide centaziners not provided
in 14.1 or 14.2 of this sectiom, the recommended procedures for che disposal
and storage of pesticides and pesticide containers detailed in Regulations,
promulgated by the Administrator, United States Epnvironmental Protection
Agzency shall be the recommended procedures for West Virginia. The

, commissioner shall make copies of these procedures available to anv person
needing guidance for proper disposal or storags of pesticides or pesticide
containers.
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Section 15. Pesticide Advisory Board

15.1 E=zpenses of Members Not From State Governmental Departments -
Pesticide Adviscory Board members net from governmental departments shall
submit sxpense accounts to the commissioner mo later than the 8th day of
the month following the month in which expenses were incurred on forms
provided by the commissioner. Reimbursements made to members not from
goevernmental departments shall be made for the actual cost of lodging,
meals and transportation according to the regulations applicable to
department emplovees.

Section 16. Exemptions

16.1 Experimental Research Exemption — The provisions of Section 5
(5.2) of these regulations relating to categorization of commercial
applicators shall not apply to research personnel applying pesticides only

to bona fide experimental plots.

Section 17. Restricted Use Pestic;de Dealerships

17.1 TEach Establishment To Be Licensed - Each establishment, store,
warehouse or other place where restricted use pesticides are seold oxr oififered
for sale shall be considered to be 2 dealership and at least one persen
at esach dealership shall be licensed as required by the Act.

17.2 Salesmen or Technical Sales Representatives - Szlesmen or
technical sales revresentatives for out-of-stzte pesticide dealers shall
be subject to the provisions of Section 13 of the 4Act.

Section 18. Application Equipment

18.1 Generzl Prohibitions - No person shall apply, dispense, or
uge any pesticide in or through any/equipment or applicaticn apparatus
unless such equipment or application apparatus 1s in sound mechanical
condition and capable of satisfzctory operation. ALl pesticide applicaticn
equipment shall be properly equipped to dispense the proper amount of
materialy all pesticide mixing, storage, or holding tanks, whether on
epplication egquipment or mot, shall be lsak-prooi; all sprav distribution
systems shall be leakproof and any pumps which such systems may have
shall be capable of operating at sufficient pressure to assure a2 umniform
and adsquate rate of discharge; and all pesticide application equipment
shall be equipped with whatever cut-off wvalves and discharge orifices mayv
be necessary to znable the operator to pass over (or by} non-target
areas without contaminating them.

Secticm 18. Implementation

19.1 TLicensed Pesticlde Application Business -

19.1.1 Effective July 1, 1981, 211 perscns owning or managing
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a pesticide applicatiocon business which is engaged in the business of
applying pesticides upon the lands of another {(whether or mnot such perscn
applies restricted use pesticides) and who hold Licenszed Applicator
licenses valid for 1981, shall make application to the commissioner

for license and examination on a2 regular form supplied by the commissioner
prior to December 21, 1981, accompanied by the required annuzl fee of
Fifty Dollars ($50.00), and the financial securitv required under Section
14 of the law and Section 13 of these regulations.

19.1.2 Effective July 1, 1981, any person not holding a
Licensed Applicator license valid for 1881 and who desires to engage
in the business of applying pesticides forx hire shall meke application
to the commissioner on a2 regular form supplied Ly the commissioner for
a Licensed Pesticide Application Business License. Such applicsznt,
after successfully demonstrating the competency resgquired under Sectiom 6
of these regulations, shall be licensed as a Licensed Pesticide Application
Business providing the proper fee has been paid and the other requirements
of the Act and these regulations are satisfied.

19.2 Private Applicators and Other Applicastors (Commercial or
Certified Public Applicator) Not Engaged in the Business of Applying
Pegticides Upon the Land of Another - Private applicators, certified
public applicatcors and commercizl applicaters in all categoeories
not engaged in the business of applving pesticides upon the lands of
ancother shall make application for certificate and determination of
competency te the commissioner on a regular form provided by the
commissioner, zccompanled by the required fes of One Dollar ($1.00)
prior to the date they desire to purchase or use restricted use pesticides,
and shall maintain current certificaticns sc long as they desire to use
restrictad use pesticides,

19.3 Dealers - AlL persons who are dealers in restricted use
pesticides shall make application for license and examination o the
cecmmissioner on a regular form provided by the commissioner, accompanisd
by a required fee of Five Dollars (33.00) prior to the date they desire
to engage in the business ¢ dispensing restricted use pesticides, and
shall maintaifn such i1icense so long as they desire to deal in restricted
use pesticides.

Section 20. Permits

20.1 Commissioner May Issue - The commissioner may issue a permit
to a non-~certifiied applicator to use a restricted use pesticide for a
specific use and for a specific perioed of time providing the person
desiring such permit completes an application con a form provided by the
commissioner and pays One Dollar (51.00) fee and demonstrates competency
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in the use of that pesticide according to the label directioms. Such
demonstration of competency shall be by oral examinetion before the
commEissioner.
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Section 4.4 The following pesticides are hereby daclared to be restricted
to use by applicateors certified to use restricted use
pesticides.

RESTRICTED USE PESTICIDE LIST
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This hearing was held at 1:30 p.m., on this date in the John T. Johnson
Auditorium, Guthrie Agricultural Complex, Charleston, West Virginia 25312.

Attending weére:

Name /Representing

Mary K. CIiff
C & € Pest Control

Cladys Vance
Jan Pest Control

David 0. Quinn
West Virginia University

Robert C. Hampton
Orkin Exterminating

Cecil Taylor
Bruce Terminix

Tandy Ratcliff

SS1 Industries, Inc.

JoAnn Kelly
Dodson Brothers Exterminating

Dexter Owsley
House Doctor

Johnny Raschella
Ace Exterminating

Gus R. Douglass o
Agriculture Commissioner

Dr. Charles C. Coffman

Plant Pest Control Division (WVDA)
Robert E. Frame

Plant Pest Control Division (WVDA)
Veronica Jenkins

Plant Pest Contrel Division (WVDA)
Jerri Eberbaugh

Flant Pest Control Division (WVDA)

Charlie West

Address

70 Westview Avenue
Huntington, WV

Box 53

Davin, WV

408 Brooks Hall
P. O. Box 6057
Morgantown, WV

30371 Dixie Highway
Edgewood, KY 4l017

1111 Quarrier Street
Charleston, WV

P. 0. Box 9276
Huntingion, WV

5611 MacCorkle Avenue
So. Charleston, WV

5401 MacCorkle Avenue, S.E.
Charieston, WV

711 Berkeley Pike
Belington, WV

West Virginia Depariment of Agriculiure




COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: At this time, | will call to order a public
hearing relative to amendments to the West Virginia Pesticide Usea and
Application Act. Let the record indicate that the notice of this hearing
was filed with the Secretary of State's Office on April 8, 1986, and that
news releases of general circulation and announcements to the industry
in West Virginia that might be affected was also placed in circulation

at least thirty days prior to this hearing. Let the record indicate that
this hearing does meet all the requirements of the Siate of West Virginia
in reference to the holding of hearings by the Depariment of Agriculture
or any Division of government of the State of West Virginia. We have

circulated to you copies of these amendments here. | have requested
a register of those that are desirous to speak, which | have before me,
Also, | will 'introduce into the record any written comments that might

have been sent to this Depariment at this time. D, Coffman, do you
have any written comments?

DR. COFFMAN: We have not received any.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Let the record indicate that to this point
we have not received any writlen documents relative {o these proposed
amendments. This is an official hearing, but at the same time 1 am

not requiring that you be sworn. Any testimony that any may desire to
make in reference to these amendments may be given. Those that desire
to speak, are they on the record as desiring to speak? Any person
that does desire toc address this hearing in reference to the regulations
may do so. My normal procedure is toc ask memiers- of the staff to go
through the proposed amendments, read them, and we will hear any
comments. We will take them section at a time and at that time if you
desire 1o inguire, we will be more than happy to hear your comments in
reference to them.

Amendments atiached and marked Exhibit #l

If there is a person who has a written statement that they wish to make,
I will welcome that statement at this time, prior to opening up the hearing
from staff. Is there a statement to be filed at this time? If not, | will
ask Dr. Charles Coffman to go to those areas wherein amendments are
proposed within these regulations. Where changes are made there are
strike throughs or they are underlined. Those are the only areas that
we are amending in the regulations. The regulations remain the same

on the first page and we go to the second page where the amendments .
start. Dr. Coffman do you have any opening comments, or your staff,
before we do get underway?

DR. COFFMAN: I have a statement that Bob has prepared, Commissioner,
as sort of a background, sort of an introduction, prior to reading the
regulations.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Preocead with your introduciory statement
and then vou may proceed with Section 13 of the regulations.




-

DR. COFFMAN: This is a statement made by the Plant Pest Control
Division on the insurance regulations that are being presented today
at this public hearing.

{Dr. Coffman then read the attached statement marked Exhibit No. 2.)

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: For the benefit of the visitors who have

just arrived, we are going o take up the propecsed requlations section by
secticn and we will welcome your comments, pro or con. We will ask that

vou identify yourself before vou speak. Put your hand up sc that we can
keep it orderly and | will give each of you an cpportunity to speak on

these regulations or proposed amendmentis. [ might add that these regulations
are in force and effect now as emergency regulations, and so really this

will determine whether they stay in force and become permanent regulations.
Dr. Coffman. :

DR. COFFMAN: Section [3 of the Wesi Virginia Pesticide Use and Application

Act - Financial Securiiy Required of Licensed Pesticide Application Businesses, ectc.
{Dr. Coffmman read Section 2 of said regulations, herein attached and

marked Exhikit No. I.)

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Are there any questions or comments. |f so,
please state your name and proceed,

CECIL TAYLOR: My name is Cecil Tavlor with Bruce Terminix. I[f | am
not mistaken, my policy excludes the contamination except where it was
accidental. | took this to mean that if we are applying insecticides and
they are overly applied in some manner as to cause contamination, then it
would be accidental, it wouidn't be on purposse. Can vou give me some
answers on this?

ROBERT E. FRAME: In checking with the insurance companies and dealing
with the different ones, the pollution exclusions usually say that they

will not cover unless it is a sudden and accidental loss, which means that
it you were in 8 home spraying and a hose burst on a tank and there

was a sudden and accidental loss of the chemical, they would cover you.
But the purposeful application for the job that you are trying to do,

o apply the pesticides to conirol termites or roaches or whatever, if a
claim should arise from that, they do not necessarily have to cover you
because ithe applicaticn of that chemical was not sudden or accidental.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: 1 might further elaborate on that. The new
changes in the law dealing with pesticides in Congress is addressing
this clearly, with aimost identical ianguage to what he says.

MR. TAYLOR: |If we were treating a house and the chemical got into
a well, even though that well was 50 feet from the house, then that would
not be considered accidental?

MR. FRAME: In that case it probably would be. However, if a person
living in that house that you spraved for fleas or whatever, became ill,
then the company does have an out that they can back out of the coverage,




MR. TAYLOR: Even though you are using the chemicals legally, according
toc the labels?

MR, FRAME: Right.

MR. TAYLOR: In other words we don't have any coverage if they want to
back out?

MR. FRAME: That's right, if they want to back out. That has been a
thing that has occured in the last two or three years, with all the concern
about chemicals. [t depends, really, on the insurance company. | have
some letters from some companies that state that although there is a
nollution and contamination exciusion within the poiicy, they regard that
as being for 2 major catastrophe and they state in the leiter that they
would cover for the normal use znd application of pesticides if the problem
arises such as z person becoming ill, a cat dying, shrubbery being killed,
or whatever. However, there are other companies that say that if there
is any problem that arises from the use of pesticide, then that is a
contamination problem and we don't cover it.

MR. TAYLOR: Then what are we going to do if we can’t get insurance?

MR. FRAME: That was the reason that we chose the word purposeful or
purposeful use and application of pesticides and tried to stay away from
some of the more negative terms such as pollution and contamination. This
insurance is to cover vou if you apply pesticides in a home and a probiem
should arise. 1t would probably still go with the Depariment certificaie
that the insurance company is certifying that they know what they are
covering for, because some agents don't. | might add that the Department
certificate that we are requiring now, there was a case that was tried in
the Kanawha County Circuit Court. Just recently a decision was rendered
there and the company had an exclusion in the policy and they tried to
back out of coverage and because of the certificate that we required

(that was different from the standard zaccord form) that specified just
what the insurance was for, Judge Hey recently ruled that the company
did have tc pay off, even though they had an exciusion saying that

they did not have to. That protects you all.

COMMISSIONER DOUCLASS: Other questions? Do you understand what
we are saying? This is the reason we are trying to change this law and
make it a litile mere undersiandable to the industry and what we are aware
of that you are faced with.

MR. TAYLCR: I'm not sure | understand.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Well, if you feollow directions your insurance
will cover vyou, basically, but if you don't, if you spray once and you
don't think you put enough on and you spray it the second time, then you
are not following label directions and you may then be liable.




MR. TAYLOR: Yea, but right now, the way | read my insurance policy,
they coculd get out of it unless it was as we said a while ago.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Well, | think you will be surprised when you
look and the znniversary date of your policy and what they come back
at you with. Yes?

DEXTER OWSLEY: |!'m Dexter Owsley, House Doctor Exterminating Company.
We are talking about accidental pollution and contamination, but the rumor

is in the insurance industry that this will not be avzilable at zll next vyear,
then what? -

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Since this is in the law, and | can only work
within the boundaries of the law with the regulaiions---of course the law
states that if you don't have insurance coverage, then ycu cannot operate,
unless the Legisiature comes back and hassels with them as they are doing
downtown right at the moment. Iis just a general acrcss the beard situation.

MR. FRAME: What we are facing here, | think, and we have tried io address in
this, is in the State Act itself, which was passed by the Legislature, which
says that the Commissioner shall not issue a license, a Pesticide Application
Businéss license as required in Section 8 of the Article, until the applicant
has filed evidence of financial security with the Commissicner, which is a
surety bond, or whatever, in an amount not less than twenty-five thousand
dollars, protecting persons who may suffer legal damages as a resuit of the
operations of the applicant or the applicant’s employees, and that's got

to include your everyday application of products if a claim arises. Now
what we have tried to do is to address that. |If this type of insurance
should be wiped out, then, unless the law is changed the Commissicner

has to require at least twenty-five thousand dollars. That's why we put

in that if it is not available, there has to be an zdditional rider or surety
bond, we now have the twenty-five thousand doilars to cover that. Now

if those things are just not avaiiable, period, then the Legisiature is

going to have to come back to rewrite the law.

MR. OWSLEY: Where does that leave us? You know a claim for contamination
or polluticn is probably a good lucrative spot for them tc sue us on.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Unless you can get the coverage. And we
are telling you what yeou are facing. Basically | am not requiring that
coverage. | am giving you a locphole.

MR. GWSLEY: 1 Understand that, too.

COMMISSIONER DCUGLASS: You had better be aware of what is in those
policies and how they are being written. Yes, Mr. Taylor?

MR. TAYLOR: |If 1 read this correctly, if we could not cbtain the proper
insurance then we could put up 2 twenty-five thousand dollar bond and
operate. Is this correct?

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Right.




MR. FRAME: |If it comes fo that. There has toc be a mechanism created
to do that, but that is certainly a possibility.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS. Use the term "alternative in dire circumstances".
MR. TAYLOR: Just as long as we have some way t¢ stay in business.
COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Are there other questions?

MR. OWSLEY: There might be 2 problem getting a twenty-five thousand
dollar security bond.

COMMISSIONER DCOUGLASS: That's your court of last resort, I'm sorry.

MR. TAYLOR: But those insurance companies are the ones that write
those.

COMMISSIONER DOUCLASS: | know then we are in ancother situation and
! have no latiiude on that.

MR. FRAME: There was cne individual this spring that was having difficulty
and | taiked with he and his agent guite a bit and they were locking at that
time, about setting up a cash bond to cover claims. Because of the fact
that an insurance compzany did come along and pick him up, detzails of that
arrangement were never worked out, but that would be a possibility.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Are there other questions? There seems 1o
be none. Let the record indicate that | hear no objections to the amendment
in this Section. Proceed. ‘

DR. COFFMAN: (Dr., Ccffman then read Section [3.l.] of the attached
Exhibit 1).

COMMISSIOGNER DOUGLASS: What we are doing here in this one appiies
to each of the others as we go through, so if you would like tc address
any of these through 13.1.8, feel free to,do so, because they are the same.

JOHNNY RASCHELLA: 1 am Johnny Raschella, Ace Exterminator. |1 see
that we had a little meeting here at the Department and there was something
brought up that they were going tc lower the limits to two-hundred

fifty thousand dollars with a five-hundred thousand dollar aggregate.

Was that neot brought up, Bob?

BOB FRAME: That was discussed in trying to determine some level

to set the insurance. In geing back and talking with the insurance commissioner
and agents, we were advised that three-hundred thousand doliars was about

the bare minimum so we chose the three-hundred thousand dollars. These

are the minimum amounts. If 2 person desires to have more than that, they
can. in most insurance certificates that we see they are three-hundred
thousand dollars each occurence, one-million dollars aggregate or some
combination thereof. This was at the advice of the insurance people that

this probably was the bare minimum.




JOHNNY RASCHELLA: What | was getting at, and ! just seen it in here,
everybody knows that you need more than that tc start with., My point in
bringing it up is that it was discussed when the Associaticn had a meeting
with you all, and | didn't think | heard anything different on this. That's
the reason | was bringing it up.

MR. FRAME: | think these would be the same ones that | passed around
at the last meeting in March.

MR. RASCHELLA: 'l dig it out and be sure.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: One further note here, and Bob, correct me
if 1 am wrong, but one of the problems in writing this particular policy
was that we struck the hundred-thcusand dollar property damage clause.

MR. FRAME: Correct. The certificates that we get in most cases are
combined single limits and in crder to get the three-hundred thousand dollars
each occurence and the property damage, some people were, in essence,
having to purchase two policies. We also had a lot of difficulty in when
there were combined single limits that would include the property damage,
getting the people to get enough insurance. This was a simplified way

to make a combined singie limit. Some people feel that this is a reduction
coverage and in one sense of the word it is and in another sense it is
an increase. In the past ten vears, all of the claims that | am aware of
have been in the area of property damage. Sc while this is a decrease

in the overall amcunt of insurance required, it is actually increasing the
insurance that we have seen the activity in. 1 think that it better covers
the people of the state and the company.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Further questions? Comments? Now is your
chance. Feel free to comment or ask questions. Are you in agreement or
shouid there be amendments to the changes 1 through 87 Let the record
indicate | hear no objection to these amendmentis that | propose. O.K.
Proceed.

DR. COFFMAN: (Dr. Coffman read Section 13-2 of the West Virginia
Pesticide Use and Application Act, which is attached hereto and marked
Exhibit No. I)

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Questions? Comments on the aerial applicators?

JOHNNY RASCHELLA: | was just wondering why the aerial a2pplicators
have the same requirements as the pest control coperators do when they
stand a greater risk of contaminating, vyet it is still the same amount
of liability and property damage.

MR. FRAME: The only change we have made there is to decrease the property
damage from the two-hundred thousand doliar ievel to the cne-hundred
thousanid dollar level for the simple reason that that is zll that is out

there. There is nothing else available to them.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Do you understand that is the minimum amount




that companies will insure an aircraft. Of course, there is more danger
of an zircraft falling than there is of your iruck damaging something
out here in the performance of your work activities.

MR. RASCHELLA: That was why | asked the question. There is more
danger of an aircraft causing a bigger problem than PCO does and still
they have the same minimum standards.

MR. FRAME: = Thelir insurance in essence, is a little bit greater than yours
but again that is all that is available to them. In fact we have some people
that if you were to currently reqguire the two-hundred thousand dollars,
they would be out of business. It's just not there.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Other questions? Comments? Are there
objections fo this section in its form? Let the record indicate | hear none.
Dr. Coffman, do you have further amendments.

DR. COFFMAN: No. Thirteen-three is the same.

COMMISSIONER DOUGLASS: Thirteen-three - Liability for Pesticide Use

is the same, without change. And again, the only changes are those strike
throughs or under-lines in the regulations. Are there any general comments
at this time that anyone desires to make before | close this hearing?

Lei the record indicate that | hear none. A transcript of this hearing

will be made by the Department and bscome & part of the record. If

vou are in favor of the amendmentis o these regulations, it is fo your
advantage to write a letter stating so. You should have letters of support
in the record. If you do not agree there should alse be written comments
to that effect. The procedure is that after all the information is gathered,
I will be making recommendatiions to the lLegisiative Rule Making Review
Committee and then they make their recommendation to the Legislature,

who In furn enact them into law.

If there are no further comments, and nothing further relative to this record,
let the record indicate that at approximately 2:10 p.m., | have adjourned
this hearing. 7

-

Gus R. Douglass
Agriculiure Commissioner




XHIEIT 1

Dept. of Agri.
Leg. Regs., 15-16B
SERIES Xlla, Sec. 13

-

Section 137 Financial Security Beauired of Licensed Pesticide Aoolication Businesses

13.1 Amounts - The commissioner shall not issue a licensed pesticide application
business license until the applicant has filed evidence of financial security with
the commissicner, which may consist of a surety benme bond or lizkility insurance
policy or certification thereof from an insurance company licansad to do busineass
in West Virginia. Such financial security shall be far-ime-zmourt-and-kind in the
amounts listad for each catecory of licensed -speHeater-as-foitews<- pesticide zooli-

cation business.

The type of insursnce coverage shall be in the form of Comorenensive Ceneral
Liability with a Broad Form General Liability Suppiement. [f the insurance coverage
specifically excludes ligbility arising from the purposeful use or application of pesti-
cides, an additicnal insurance rider or surety bDond musi be secured in a3 minimum
amount of 325,000 tc orovide such Tinancial security.,

13.1.1 Agriculture Plant Pest Control - An applicant for license in this category
sihall file evidence of financial security in the minimum amount of Three Hundred
Thousand Dellars ($300, 000, 00) for-Bedby--drfuty-or-destlhfor-sech-cooureneer—anch

EHre Hundred -Thousend-Dolleres - 186 ~369 55 -For-reperip —damege weseMing Fromthe
pse-or-misuseof-pestieides- combined single limit for bodily injury or death and
oroperty damage.

13.1.2 Animal Pest Control - An applicant for license in this category shall file
evidence of financial security in the minimum amount ¢f Three Hundred Thousand
Dollars (3300, 000.00) Fer-bediby—tniury-orcdesthr-for-—etch cecurrencer-anet Gne-rhundred
Trcusand-Doliars-£E+80,800-30) ~fer preperty-damege-—resu bt ng--from-the-gse—or-misdse~
of-pesticidesz- combined single limit Tor bodily injurvy or desth and prooerty damage.

-

12.1,3 Forest Pest Control - An applicent for license In this cztegory shall file
evidence of financizl security in the minimum a2mount of Three Hundred Tnousand
Dollars (8300, 000.00) fer-kedihs—njory-or-cdesth -for-etchrceeurrenece—end-Gre-tHurdrec-
TreusEne-Deltars - (5166796838 F ~Forpregeriy-demege~resubing from-the wse—er-misuse-
of-pesticidesz- _combined singie limit for bodily injury or death and property dazmage.

13.1.4 Ornamental and Turf Pest Control - An apolicant for license in this
category shall fille evidence of financial sscurity in the minimum amount of Three

‘Hundred Thousand Deollars ($300,000.00) fer-bedibr-injury--ordesth for-eachroecurrence
ramdg-Gre-Hundred-ThRensamdDoHars-£53 86530659} - for—areperty-damege-resul Hng From-

the-use or-misuse oi-pestieides- combined smgle limit for bodily injurv or death and
property damage. : - - : : :

13.1.5 Seed Trestment - An applicant for license in this category shall file
evidence of financial security in the minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($300,000.00) %“-b@é—i—f—y—*{ﬂfw“&P“i‘&&&h‘%ﬁ%"@@@:r‘t‘eRE&—EFE{.L'-G-ﬂe—H-‘-..‘-ﬁ' ras-
?—Z'msaﬁe.LDe-i-ranje——S 1067868760~ ?o-n*—prmper*y d-&me-ge ~rasyis 'ﬁ-‘g‘—f-““s‘ﬁ“%"’*e"dﬁe—a“m;“dse-

ef-pesticides:- combined single [imit for bedily injury or death and procerty damage.
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Dest. of Agri.
Leg. Regs., 15-163
SERIES Xila, Sec. 13

13.1.6 Agquatic Pest Control - An applicant for license in this category shal
file evidence of financial security Iin the minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($200,000.00} f-O-t“-‘bGd'H’7’“'5!‘1}-(:!'}“;:’—61’—65'&6'{?1—'7:61"-eaeh—ﬂﬂfm—ﬁPré—-@ﬁe-HL.‘-ﬁdreé—
Thousene-Delizre-+5168-506:58)r-Fforproperty-demage —resultng-from -the “2se-or-misuse-
ef-pestictdess combined smc:'ie limit for boedily injury or death and croperiy damage.

13.1.7 Right-of Way Pest Control - An applicant for license in this category
shall file evidence of financial security in the minimum amount of Three Hundred
Thousand Doflars ($300, 000.00) for=-bediy-imigry—-or-theath-for-stch-ooctemes—ane- - -
One-Huncred ~Trouserd-Dollers -5 105266 S8 Wm&per%-damge——ﬁe—sul—tmg—#sw-th—e-
se - rrsuse of- pestfeldes- combined single limit for bodlly injury or death and
properiy damage. - -

.1.8 industrial, Institutional, Structural and Health Related Pest Control -
an applicant for license in this category shall file evidence of financial security in
the minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars {3300, 000. 00) Sor-bociiy-or-
gepibh-for-eaeh-oociirrence ~aade-One Hondeed - T rorseand- Dol e ~E5 3G -586 R 58 - -Fo-
property-demage restdting ~frem-the-use or- misuse of-pestieides - combined single limit
for bodily injury or death znd property damzage.

13.2 Aerial Applicaters - Aerizgl Applicatars in —aﬁy—-e%’: the above caiegories ar
sub- categories shall show evidence of financial security for public liability and chemical
agg ication In the minimum amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars (5300, 000.00)
for bodily injury or death -for-ezeh-occurrences and FTweo-Hundred-Jheusanc-DeHars-
{5368 560587 Cne Hundred Thousand Dollars (5700, 000. DO} for property damage.
resgtting -from-tte-dse-or-mHswse of - pesticices

12,3 Liability for Pesticide Use - Nothing in these regulations shaH be construed
in any way to relleve any person from liability for z2ny damage to the person or lands
of another caused by the use of pesticides even though such use conforms ic the
rules and reguliations of the commissioner.

—
~!

Page




S

EXHIBIT 2

PLANT PEST CONTROL DIVISICN
STATEMENT ON INSURANCE REGULATIONS
PRESENTED AT PUBLIC HEARING - MAY 2Z, 1986

The 130 companies affected by the requirements for insurance to operate a
licensed pesticide application business provide many services essential to the health,
weifare and safety of the citizens of the state. The services performed which are
often overlooked and taken for granted include:

* Weed control, on highways and railways, to assure readible signs and
safe transportation of people, goods and services;

* Brush control on utility rights-of-way to provide uninterrupted power,
fuel and communication; )

* The protection of homes and other structures from wood desiroying insects;

* Pest conirol services in hospitals, restaurants, warehouses, and public
buildings tc help maintain the public health by assuring a pest free environ-
ment for leisure, work and feood sterage and preparation; and

* The protection of agricultural crops and forests, thereby providing focd and
raw buiiding materials necessary to ithe economy and well being of the state.
The problems concerning types of insurance coverage and exclusions in policies

first appeared about 1980. Advice was sought from the insurance Commission. At
that time, we were advised {o prepare an insurance certificaie specific to our regula-
tory requiremenis. A representative of the Insurance Commission designed a certifi—
cate for our use. Thne certificate specific to the requirements was adeguate until the
beginning of the liability insurance crisis that most professions are experiencing.
Firsi, Insurance premiums increased drasticz‘flly. Then, insurance for persons using
pesiicides became increasingly difficult to find and coverages were being reduced.,
Finally, beginning this year, socme companies reported that they would be unable to
meet cur regquirements at renewal due to increased stipulations in policies regarding
amcunts and pollution coverages.

Representatives of the Department of Agriculiure met with members of the
Insurance Commission, representatives of various insurance companies and industry
groups. The reguiations for which we are soliciting comments appear to us to be
adequate o provide protection for the people of the state, protection for the regu-
lated industry, comply with the types of insurance available today, comply with the
statutory requirements of the West Virginia Pesticide Use and Application Act, and,
at the same time, assure the continuance of the vital services of the pesticide appli-

cation industries.




STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Gus R. Douglass CHARLESTON
- ) 25305

Commissioner

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE TO
LICENSED PESTICIDE APPLICATION BUSINESSES

The West Virginia Legisiature passed House Biil 1685 on March 8, 1386, to
become effective 80 days after passage. The bill was signed into law by Governor
Moore on March 28, 1985. The bill provided amendments to the West Virginia.
Pesticide Use and Application Act in the following areas.

1) Provides that municipalities or counties cannot enact laws or ordinances
regarding the regulation of pesticide use or application (19-16B-2).

2) Provides for out-of-state firms to file with the Secretary of State rather
than the State Auditor (19~16B-8-86).

3) Requires the state tax number to be piaced on the business application
(1%-1eB-8-8).

4) Provides that a license, permit or certification may be renewed by the
first day of April without reexaminztion, provided that nmo person holding
an expired license, permit or certification shzll engage in any activity
for which the license, permit or certification is required until such
license, permit or certification has been renewed {19-18B-12).

5} Prohibits advertising as proof of prpfessfonalism in securing business
that the licensee is certified or licensed by the Department of Agriculture
or the Commissioner of Agriculture (19-18B-14-186].

6} Increases the fevel of civil penalty that may be assessed from $200 to
$500 (19-16B-22-C}.

7} Provides authority for the Commissioner to promulgate and adopt regu-
lations which permit consent agreements or negotiated settlements for
civil penalties assessed as a result of viclations of the Act {19-16B-22-D).

These changes become effective on June 6, 1586. Many companies renewing
telephone bock ads in 1936 will need to make changes in their advertising to comply
with amendment #5. Persons soliciting business and distributing business cards or
other literature after June 6, bearing the Depariment of Agriculture's or Commissioner
of Agriculture’'s name, will be in viclation and subject to the penalties of the Act.

Liability insurance has been of great concern to many appglicators. in an
effori to make insurance coverage more available to applicators, provide protection
for the applicator and the public at large and comply with the statutory restraints




Legislative Update
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of the Pesticide Use and Application Act, “the insurance réqui%emehts are being
changed. The proposed new requirements are as follows.

A Licensed Pesticide Application Business must show financial responsibility
in the form of a Comprehensive Generzal Liability Insurance Pclicy with a Broad
Form General Liability supplement in a minimum amount of $360, 000 combined sin-
gle limit for bodily injury or death and property damage. |If the policy specifically
excludes liability for the.purposeful use of pesticides, an insurance rider cr

surety bond in a minimum amount of $25,000 shall be secured to provide such
coverage.

This level of insurance is to be secured for all types of Licensed Pesticide
Application Businesses except aerial applicators. The proposed new limits for

for bodily injury or death and $100, 080 for property damage.

These amounts and types of insurance were established after consultation with
many insurance consultants and varicus industry companies. | suggest you consult
your individual agents as to their effect on your particular business. A public
hearing is scheduled for May 22, 1986 to hear any comments, good or bad, on these
proposed regulations. A copy of the news release regarding the hearing is enclosed.

If you have any questions, plezse call me at (3043) 348-2212.

Sincerely,

/ié,&wé'.f«ﬁw

Robert E, Frame, Program Leader
Pesticide Use and Application
Plant Pest Control Division

REF /ss S e

Enclosure
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Publlc Hearm o

mAgnculture - Commmsmner
‘Gus=-R.::Douglass _teday . an-
nounced that ne will conduet a
,pubhc ‘hearing  at -1:30.. p.m.,|
Thursday, May 22, 1986, in the
~John T.. Johnson Audltonum,
Bu11d1ng =3, - .:Guthrie
A.Adrlcuituralm__ omplex,
‘Charleston, - West.-{wrgmza‘
ﬂadz,q_j:g_dxscgs “proposed
Fihranges of“the"-regulanons
-+ dealing with the West Virginia
: Pesumdes Use and Appi:cation_

deals with - the habﬁxty
-Surance , or other, proof of
ﬁnanmal respon51b1hty as . a-
i requirement for being licensed |
i2to ;. apply . pesticides ..and ..is
.-needed in order, 1o reflect 2he
vn-cm'reni:—1:1"&:1(:15 of i

!.:.'E;__.._-uﬂ-h
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AP

w.avaﬂabzhty, frgeie
-.—-Bersons wzshmg to “obtain

. copies of the proposed changes o

or ‘further information on the _.
 hearing location may do so by

“ calling (304) 348-2212. Written =

. fomments should be mailed to -
“the” Plant Pest Control
Division, ~—~West  Virginia ™
Department of . Agriculture, |
"Capitol Building, Charleston, ;
3 WV 25205, Persons making oral
~presentations at the hearing |
are requested to also submit |
written comments ai that time
in order to facilitate their
review. Only regulations:
dealing with Section 13 of the
West Virginia Pesticide Use
and Application Act wﬂl he on .
aihe agenda. . T |
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Hearmg Set On

Pesticide Rules . .

«: Agriculture Commissioner Gus R.” |

“Johnson Aud1t0rzum -Building "3,
--Guthrie “Agricultural Complex,
. Charlesion, WV 25312, to discuss pro-
. posed changes of the regulat:ons deal- -
Ing with the West Virginia Pesticides -

Douglass bas announced that he will
conduct a public hearmg at1:30p.m.,
Thirsday, May 22, in the John T

A

- ke,

."Use and Application Act in Section 13. %

-+ the liability instrance or other proof

'

-ment for .being licensed to-apply

‘reflect the current trends of insurance .
" availability, :

‘Douglass says Section 12 deals with |

of finaneial responsibility as a require-

pesticides and is needed in order to

Persons w1shmg to obtam coples of
the proposed changes or further infor-
mation on the hearing location may do |
£6 by calling 304-348-2212, Written com- |

-ments should be mailed to the Plant i

Pest Control Division, West Vu'glma

Department of Agrictlture, (‘apltol

Building. Charleston, WV 253035, Per-
sons making oral presentations at the 1
hearing are requested to also submit ;
written cemments at that time in .
order to facilitate their review. Only
regulations dealing with Section 13 of
the West Virginia Pesticide Use and
Application Act will be on the agenda.
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Pesticide Hearing Planne

Agriculture Commissioner Gus
‘R, Douglass will conduct g public
shearing at 1:30 p.m., May 22 in
~the John T: Johnson Auditorium,
zBuilding 3, Guthrie Agricultural
sComplex. Charleston, *o discuss
sproposed changes of the regula-

.ztions dealing with the West Vir-

" ginfa Pesticides Use and Applica-
tion Act in Section 13, — =

" The section deals with the lia-
. bility insurance sr other proof of
=financial responsiblity as a re

Dies of ihe proposed changes ory
further infoermation on the hear-:
ing iocation may do so by caliing:!
1348-2212, -Writtén comiments:
should be mailed to the Plant:
-Pest Control Division, West Vir-

_ ginia Départment of Agriculture,r

- Capitol "Building _Charleston,”,
-W.Va, 25365.; . |
- Persons making oral presenta-u
““tions at the hearing also are
=requested to submit writterr comn-"

_quirement for being 'licensed~to Ments at that time in order_tos

“apply pesticides and & needed in
g‘o:der;to,;refiect_f,the _eurrent
X e A T a1:
itrends of -nsurance _availability,
ouglass said. —rmimagti. o5
ersons wishing to obtawm

:lations dealing™with Secfion 13 ot

~and Application ‘Act
~the agenda. . =z

+facilitate their review. Only reguy ~ -

-the.West Virginia ‘Pesticide Usel-

P R

Clipping Division
West Virginia Press

Services, Inc.
1033 Quarrier St. Suite 203
Charleston, WV 25301

W e o« p
Putna}nj 0 chcrat ‘%5

Wintielg, wyv

Circulation: 2.000

JZ, .7 . Pesticide
o :Regulations =
Agriculture Commissioner Gus R,

Douglass today (Apr. 9) announc.
ed that hs will conduct a public

hearing at 1:30 p.m. oz Thursday,
May 22, 1986, in the John T.
Johnson Auditorium, Building 3, .|
“ Guthris Agricultural Complex, i
‘Charleston, West  Virginia |
" 25312,t0 discuss proposed changes J
 in the regulations dealing with the H
. West Virginia Pesticides Use and
. Application Act in Section 13, .
f‘ﬁ:‘,DcugIz_xss says Section 13 deals
Twith the lizbility insurance or
krother proof of financial respon-—4
7 sibility as a requirement for being: 3
; licensed to apply pesticides and is %
nesded in order to reflect the cur-
: insurance

an

'rent * trends cof
Lavailabitity, . .
7 - Persons '.wishing o “obtain’
£, ©Opics of the proposed changes or !
77 further information on the hear-

! ing location may do so by calling .

et mmlorn Ly

[ (304) 348-2212, Written comments -
should be mailed to the Plant Pest
Control Division, West Virginia
Deparimen:z of Agriculture,

.Capitol Building, Charleston, WV

725305, Persons making oral
presentations at the hearing are re-

) quested to also submit written

e

comments at that time in order to
facilitate their review, Cnly regula-
‘tions dealing with Ssetion 13 of
the West Virginia Pesticide Use |
and Application Act willbe onthe |
agenda, I .
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=wWest V:rgzma dLgrn:ulture Com-
Lmissioner o

110 A, M. 1 —conduct g @

% public hearing at 1:30 p.m. Thurs;
“day, May 22, in the John T. John® %
son . Auditorium,  Building = 3, |
.Guthrie = Agricultural & - Compléx, ¥
® Charleston, -to-discuss . Droposed
‘changes. “in® Tegulatiorns - dealing *!
Lwith Sectlon 13 of ;the, West Vir- @
_ginig Pestzcmles Dse and Apphca ;‘_5

uon Acll” e w* e
e ,_Douglass says Section 13 de ls
“with " the  liability . insurance  or @
other proor of financial responsibi.
lity as7z reguirement for. bemg

“reeded in order to reflect the cur-
Irent trends of. insurance. -availabil- ’
k Hy. . e
" ""Persons mshmg to obtam copies
of the proposed changes or further
..indormation on ‘the hearmf’ loca-
.tion may deo so hy calltng the
agriculture office. ™ 17 I
" Only regulat:ons deang "with
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afﬁAgncuIture Comm;ssmner Gus R. ™
=Douglass recently announced he will

" conduct-a _public heanng ‘at 1:30
?p m., Thursday, May 22, in the Jobn -
ST, Johnson Audztonum, Building 3,
’*Guthne Agricultural Complex, Cha.r- -
-leston, to discuss proposed changes g
~of the regulations dealing with the ‘J
“West Virginia Pesticides Use and
_Apphcanon Act in Section 18, -

,—""-r-é
e - ‘_\l
==

Douglass smd :Section 13 deals i

: proof of firancial responsibility as g
requirement for bemg licensed to |
apply pesticides and is reeded in |
" order to reflect the current trends of :
insurance availability. |
Persons who wish to obtain copies ,

of the proposed changes or further ,
informaticn on the hearmg location |
may do 8o by caﬂmg 304) 348-2212.
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Peshc:de hearmg May 22

YA public hearmg wﬂl be conducied at 1 30 p m. Thursdav, May 22 in

application in Secdon 13,

' Charleston on regulations dealing with West Virginia pestmde use and

.. .Thehearing, conducted by the state Department of Agrlcul‘"ure Wﬂl
.be in the John T. Johnson Agdztorlum, Buﬂdmg 3, Guthrie Agncw.ﬂtural

eCompiex in Charleston. ,, [
.Copies of the proposed changes can be obtamed by calhng 1 304 348

"—'m 12, Wriftén comments should be senf to: Plant Pest Control Division,
: Va Dept of Agnculture, Cap1t01 Buzldmg, Charleston WVa 2580 ’
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Agnculture Commissioner Gus
Do’uglass announced last week

'that"a public hearing on use of

pesticides will be held at 1:30 p.m.
Mdy 22 at Guthrie Agriculture
Complex

. . The hearing will be to discuss
proposed changes In regulations
dedling with use and apphcauon
of pestxcxdes in the state.

Persons wishing to obtain cop-
ies-of the proposed changes or fur-
thér information on the hearing
locatlon may cal call 348-2212, Writ-

:h kstensm some people CON="" ner; ~HOUStvelt s ..

/

ten comrents should be maﬂed to
the Plant Pest Controel Division,

" West Virginia Department of Ag-

riculture, Capitol Building, Char-

, leston, W.Va. 25305,

Persons making oral presenta-
tions at the hearing are asked to

,subrrut written comments at that

time in order to famhtate theu-

s review,

Only regulations dealmg with
Section 13 of the West Virginia

. Pesticide Use and Application Act

will be on the agenda,

L
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ubllc hearlng on pesticides May 22
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Summers ville,

momx Gus R. rmugms
today anmounced that he |
Cwill _conduct a public
= heaﬂng -at - 130 p,,m,, 1
_the  John | T...Johnson |
jﬂﬂdﬂonunx ‘Buiiding - 3, |
Guthrie Agricultural Com- |
7 plex, - Charleston, .- West |
““Virginia 25312, to discuss
.. proposed changes . of “the
‘regulations dealing with the
. West Virginia Pesticides :
Use and Apphcancn Actin_ '
- Sectlcm 15, .= s
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s Douglass says Secuon13
deals with the habilzty
insurance or other proof of |
financial responsibility as a
requirement for  being

: licensed to apply pesticides "

and is needed in order to
reflect the current trends of

insurance availability. .

Persons  wishing to

obtain copies of the B
proposed changes or further P
information on the hearing ~
location may do so by
calllmg (304) 348-2212.
Written comments should :
be mailed to the Plant Pest
Control . Division, ~ West
Virginia Department of
Agriculture, Capitol Build-

ing, Charleston, WV

25305. - a
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A gnculture Commissicher Gis
R.. Douglass  today ' announced -
that he wﬂl conduct a -public,

_hearing’ at 1:30 p. m.; Thursday,

May 22, ~1986,71 the Jeohn T.

A chason ‘Auditérium Buﬂdmg 3; '_,
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_-Charleston, West Vu'glma 25312,
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“'West Virginia Pesticides Use ‘and
-‘Afpphcauon Act in Section 13. -’1

-# Dongldss says Section 13 deals::

" with the._ habllny msuraﬁgce or .
““other proof of ﬁnanmai responsi- -

- bility as a requirement for bemg

Tenseﬁ ¢4 apply- pesticides. i 34"

‘Persons wishing,

‘to obtain |

N cop1es of the propsed changes or_,

|

further informaticn on the hears
ing location may do'sd by caﬂmg
(304)348 22212, " Written'™
ments shouid be mailed in the
Plant { Pest . Control Division,
West * Virginia Department of
‘Agriculture, - Capitol. Buﬂdmg,
harleston, WV 2330S. Persons
makmg oral presentatmns af that
time in order to facilitate review.
Only regulations . dealing ' with
.- Section .13 of West Virginia

“com-

|

|

Pesticide Use and "Application

ct will be on the agenda. _
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. gmla Pestlgc_igs Use and Appli-

. Eatlon "Act in Sectzon 13 will be
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: _d;%im Buﬂdznc, 3, Guthrie Aan- calhng (304} 348-2212. Written
Lo éural Complex, Charleston < commen?s should be mailed to |
_—— % Agnculturq 'f__" Comm1ssmner “the Plant Pest Control Dmsxon,'
i Gus R.;Douglass says” “Section” Wesf Virginia Depaitment” of |
13 deals with the liability insur--Agriculfure, Capitol Building, l
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“*«S Agrxculture Commxss:oner .:.‘f

:# GusR. Douglass has announced —

' that he will _conduct. a. public”

3 hearing at 1: 30 p.m. Thursday, -
" May 22, in the Joha T Jchnson' - *
~Auditorium; ™ Bdildifig — 3
. Guthrie Agricultural Complex, = =

—Charleston, to discuss proposed
».changes of the ‘regulations

Fdeahng with the West Virginia® e
Pesticides __, Use : and
o Apphcatlon Act in Secuon 13




STATL OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Gus R. Douglass CHARLESTON
. 25305

Commissicner

RULE TITLE: West Virginia Pesticide Use & Application Act
SERIES XIIs

RULE TYPE: Legizlative.

No comments were received egither at the hearing held on May 22, 1988
or by mail, before or after the hearing, except one, which copy is attached.

]

There were nc amendments made tc the proposed ruie as a result of
comments or other informaticn received.

Gus R. Douglasso
Agriculture Commissionsr



(LU{L > PEST CONTROL
.2 World's Largest

June 5, 1986

Gus R. Douglass, Commissioner
Department of Agriculture
STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
Charleston, WV 25305

Dear Commissioner:

We suppori the changes of the regulations dealing with
iiability insurance or other proof of financial respon-
sibility as proposed at the pubiic hearing held on

May 22, 1986.

The regulation changes referred to will, in our opinion,
serve to better protect the consumer and the Pest Control
Operator as well, o

For this reason, we gladly endorse these changes to be-
come & permanent part of the West Virginia Pesticides
Use and Appiicaticn Act.

Sincerely,

Bad—

Robert C. Hampton
Region Safety &
Training Director

RCH:td

3039 Dixie Highway, Suite 204, Edgewood, Kentucky 410{7 Telephone {606) 331-8001
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LEGISLATIVE RULE MAKING REVIEW COMMITTEE

AS REQUIRED




